
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

3945	Rio	Road,	Carmel,	CA	 93923		

 
August 29, 2019 

Thursday 
9:00AM 

 

 
 
 
 

 

1



  
CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT   

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES  
July 25, 2019 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL - The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m.    
 
Present:  Directors: Michael Rachel, Robert Siegfried, Charlotte Townsend 

And President White 
Absent:  Director Greg D’Ambrosio 
 
Others:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Carmel Area Wastewater District (CAWD) 

   Rachel Lather, Principal Engineer, CAWD  
   Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer, CAWD 
 Ed Waggoner, Operations Superintendent, CAWD 
 Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent, CAWD 
 Daryl Lauer, Collections Superintendent, CAWD 
 Domine Barringer, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
    Kristina Pacheco, Administrative Assistant/Board Clerk, CAWD 
    Rob Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD Legal Counsel 
    Jeff Froke, Vice President, Pebble Beach Community Service District (PBCSD) 
    Mike Niccum, General Manager, PBCSD 
  
     

1. Appearances/Public Comments: Anyone wishing to address the Board on a 
matter not appearing on the agenda may do so now. Public comment shall be 
limited to 3 minutes per person. No action shall be taken on any item not appearing 
on the agenda. During consideration of any agenda item, public comments shall be 
limited to 3 minutes per person and will be allowed prior to Board action on the 
item under discussion.  
Note: If you believe you possess any disability that would require special 
accommodations in order to attend this meeting, please call Carmel Area 
Wastewater District at 624-1248. 

2. Agenda Changes: Any requests to move an item forward on the agenda will be 
considered at this time. 

Updates to Board Packet for Item #11 June data populated, #23 Lowest Responsible bidder 
amount populated on Resolution 2019-37, #24 lowest responsible bidder with amount 
populated on Resolution 2019-38 – all items presented and inserted into the Boards packet 

2



before the start of the meeting.  Board Secretary also spoke directly about the updates prior to 
the start of the meeting. 

 
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS 
The Consent Agenda consists of routine items for which Board approval can be taken with a 
single motion and vote. A Board Member may request that any item be placed on the Regular 
Agenda for separate consideration. 
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by Director Siegfried and seconded by Director Townsend, 

the Board unanimously approved the Regular Meeting Minutes of June 30th, 2019, and 
enacted the following Consent Calendar items: 

 
 

3.  Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes on June 27,2019 and     
      Special Board Meeting on July 15, 2019     

4.  Receive and Accept Bank Statement Review by Hayashi Wayland – June 2019                          
 
5.  Receive and Accept Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements – June 2019                        
 

6.  Approve Register of Disbursements - Carmel Area Wastewater District – June 2019               
 
7.  Approve Register of Disbursements – CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project –                               
       June 2019  

8.  Receive and Accept Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules – June 2019          
 
9.  Receive and Accept Collection System Superintendent’s Report    

         April, May, & June 2019 
 
10.  Receive and Accept Safety And Regulatory Compliance Report – June 2019                                 
 

11.  Receive and Accept Treatment Facility Operations Report –         
            June, May & April 2019  

12.  Receive and Accept Laboratory/Environmental Compliance Report – June 2019       

3



 
13. Receive and Accept Capital Projects Report/Implementation Plan – June 2019       
 
14. Receive and Accept Plant Operations Report – June 2019          
 
15. Receive and Accept Maintenance Projects Report – June 2019         
 
16. Receive Principal Engineer’s Monthly General Engineering Report– June 2019           

        
ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

RESOLUTIONS 

17. Resolution No. 2019-31; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Enter        
Into A Contract With Atlantic Machinery, Incorporated For The Purchase Of A  
Vac-Con Combination Sewer And Storm Drain Cleaning Truck In the Amount Of $408,907 
Report by Collections Superintendent, Daryl Lauer 
 
Mr. Lauer explained that the District’s current truck has passed its useful life and a 
replacement is needed.  Director Siegfried asked at what point would CAWD take possession 
of the new truck and Mr. Lauer stated once the truck is delivered.  Director Siegfried 
wondered if there is interest from another entity, such as South County, to purchase our 
current truck as usable, how is it not usable for CAWD?  Mr. Lauer explained that their usage 
of such a vehicle is far less than CAWD’s and therefore would still be a value for their agency.  
President White asked what the mileage of the vehicle is and Mr. Lauer estimated it to be 
~48,000 miles for the truck engine but not the secondary diesel engine.  President White 
asked where the new truck would be manufactured, and Mr. Lauer answered it is 
manufactured in Florida.  Director Rachel asked if we would be able to determine our 
pollution output as it relates to California Air Board Regulations with the new truck.  Mr. 
Foley stated the new truck is not subject to the California Air Board diesel truck regulations 
since both the truck’s engines are gas.  Director White asked why not replace the secondary 
diesel engine on the old truck with a new gas engine?  Mr. Lauer said it would be $60,000 or 
$70,000 for a retrofit and is not a sound financial decision.  President White wondered how 
much the old truck is worth and Mr. Lauer indicated between $40,000 & $100,000.  President 
White was pleased to learn that staff has made an effort to sell the existing truck in favor of 
keeping it.  Director Siegfried would like to have “broader marketing” done to sell the 
existing truck and both Mr. Lauer and General Manager, Buikema agreed.   
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director Siegfried, 

the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-31. 

4



 
18. Resolution No. 2019-32; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Execute         
 A Minor Services Contract with Hall Landscape Design In An Amount Not To Exceed 
 $27,375 for Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Perimeter Trees And Interior 
 Landscape Planning – Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 
Mr. Treanor explained this is a resolution to have an initial study regarding the long-term 
maintenance of the trees that surround the CAWD plant.  Director Townsend expressed 
regret that Director D’Ambrosio was absent as he was an arborist.  President White stated 
he is unsure/unwilling to move forward with the resolution due to concern over the Coastal 
Commission and the absence of Director D’Ambrosio.  Director Siegfried also would like to 
table the resolution and had concern over irrigation. 
 
Jeff Froke of PBCSD commented on the necessity to study trees prior to determining any 
action needed to be taken. 
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by President White and seconded by Director Siegfried, 

the Board unanimously agreed to table Resolution No. 2019-32 to the August 
Board meeting. 

 
19. Resolution No. 2019-33; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Enter Into     
A Contract With Mailey Electric For Electrical Services In Fiscal Year 2019-20 In An 
Amount Not to Exceed $220,000 – Report by Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley 
 
Mr. Foley discussed the recommendation to renew a contract with Mailey Electric to 
continue to do electrical services for CAWD. 
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director Townsend, 

the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-33. 
 
20. Resolution No. 2019-34; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Enter Into      
A Contract With Informative Controls For Integration Services In Fiscal Year 2019-20 In An 
 Amount Not To Exceed $310,000 – Report by Maintenance Superintendent, Chris Foley 
 
Mr. Foley recommends contracting with Informative Controls to continue moving forward 
with transitioning from CAWD’s old SCADA system to a new SCADA system.  Director 
Siegfried had concerns about what percentage of the amount is for engineering and how the 
process of the services is carried out.  Mr. Foley stated that the entire amount is solely for 
engineering services.  Mr. Foley also explained that this will allow CAWD, PBSCD and the 
pump stations to interact and share data. 
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by Director Rachel and seconded by Director Siegfried, 

5



the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-34. 
 

21. Resolution No. 2019-35; A Resolution Authorizing Inviting Bids For “Digester No. 1           
Cleaning”– Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 
 
Mr. Treanor explained that Digestor No. 1 will be removed from service and cleaned to 
prepare it for future rehabilitation.   

 
Board Action 

Following a motion made by Director Siegfried and seconded by Director 
Townsend, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-35. 

 
22. Resolution No. 2019-36; A Resolution Authorizing The General Manager To Execute           
An Amended Contract With Kennedy/Jenks Consultants For Professional Services In An  
Amount Not To Exceed $39,170 To Provide Additional Design Services For The  
“Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) Elec/Mech Rehab And Sludge Holding Tank Project” 
Report by Plant Engineer, Patrick Treanor 

 
Board Action 

Following a motion made by Director Siegfried and seconded by President White, 
the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-36. 

 
23. Resolution No. 2019-37; A Resolution Accepting The Lowest Responsible Bid For The        
“Monte Verde Extension and 2nd Avenue Sewer Line Replacement” And Authorizing  
General Manager To Execute A Contract With The Lowest Qualified Bidder In The  
Amount of $91,100-Report by Principal Engineer, Rachel Lather 

 
Ms. Lather reported the outcome of the bidding that was done for the Monte Verde 
Extension and 2nd Avenue Sewer Line Replacement.  Director Rachel discussed how difficult 
it is to garner bidding interest and that the amount was close to the Engineer’s Estimate. 

 
Board Action 

Following a motion made by Director Townsend and seconded by President White, 
the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-37. 

 
24. Resolution No. 2019-38; A Resolution Determining And Designating The Lowest      
Responsible Bidder For Hatton Canyon Pipeline Replacement Project, And Consistent With  
Notice To Bidders Upon Receipt Of Grant Funding Award A Contract To The Lowest Bidder,  
And Authorize The General Manager To Execute Said Contract With The Low Bidder, And  
If The Award Is Not Made Prior To August 22, 2019 Authorize Staff To Either Negotiate An  
Extension With The Designated Low Bidder Or Reject All Bids And Cancel The Project –  
Report by Principal Engineer, Rachel Lather 
 
Ms. Lather reported on the only bid that was received for the Hatton Canyon Pipeline 
Replacement Project and the terms of acceptance of that bid.  Director Rachel was interested 

6



to know what other agencies CAWD communicated with on this project?  Ms. Lather advised 
only with the State Parks Department.  President White requested a word change in the 
resolution and Ms. Lather agreed.   

 
Board Action 

Following a motion made by Director Townsend to approve the Resolution as 
amended and a second by Director Siegfried, the Board unanimously adopted 

Resolution No. 2019-38. 
 

ACTION ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

Action Items consist of business which requires a vote by the Board. These items are 
acted upon in the following sequence: (1) Staff Report (2) Board Questions to Staff (3) 
Public Comments, and (4) Board Discussion and Action. 

OTHER ITEMS BEFORE THE BOARD 

25. Disclosure of Reimbursements Paid of at Least $100 for FY 2018-19-        
 Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema          

Requesting a motion to accept 
 

Board Action 
Following a motion made by President White and seconded by Director Townsend, 

the Board unanimously accepted the Disclosure Reimbursement Paid of at Least 
$100 for FY 2019-19. 

 
26. General Manager Salary Adjustment-              
 Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema 

Requesting a motion to approve 
 
Barbara Buikema reported on the recommendation from the Salary and Benefits Committee 
to approve the adjustment of the General Manager’s salary.  Director Rachel invited 
comments from Patrick Treanor, Chris Foley and Rachel Lather as to their time as acting 
General Manager.    

 
Board Action 

Following a motion made by Director Rachel and seconded by President White, the 
Board unanimously approved the General Manager’s Salary Adjustment. 

INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

27. PBCSD 06-28-19 Regular Board Meeting – Report by General Manager,         
Barbara Buikema 

Informational Only – No Action Required 
 

7



28. General Manager Progress Quarterly Report – Report by General Manager,                     
Barbara Buikema 

Informational Only – No Action Required 
  
29. Update on Mr. Larsen Connection In Carmel Highlands – Oral Report by Collections 

Superintendent, Daryl Lauer 
Informational Only – No Action Required 

 

STAFF & BOARD MEMBER   REPORTS 

Staff Reports include items for which verbal reports/presentation will be provided. If a 
specific presentation is planned, it will be listed and summary information may be 
included with the Agenda.   Brief oral reports may be provided for items arising after the 
Agenda preparation. The Board may wish to ask questions or discuss a staff report, but no 
action is appropriate other than referral to staff, or request that a matter be set as a future 
Agenda Item. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS       

30. General Manager’s Report – Oral Report by General Manager, Barbara Buikema  
• Coastal Commission Workshop July 12th 
• Team Building Workshop July 11th 
• Thank you from Staff 

 
31. Announcements On Subjects Of Interest To The Board Made By Members  
       Of The Board Or Staff                

             
       Oral reports or announcements from Board President, Directors or staff concerning their 

activities and/or meetings or conferences attended. 
 

PBCSD Board Public Meeting Notice & Agenda – The next PBCSD meetings are scheduled for: 
Friday, July 26, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  Director Siegfried is scheduled to attend.     
Friday, September 27, 2019 at 9:30a.m.  President White is scheduled to attend.   
 
 
 
Reclamation Management Committee Meeting – The next RMC meeting is scheduled for:  
Wednesday, November 6, 2019 at 9:30 a.m.  Director Townsend and Director White are scheduled to 
attend.  
 

 
 
 
 

Special Districts Association of Monterey County – The next SDA meeting is scheduled for: 
Tuesday, October 15, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  Director Townsend is scheduled to attend. 
 
 
 32.  CLOSED SESSION: A closed session of the Board is not planned, but may be held if 

necessary, for certain limited purposes authorized pursuant to California Government Code. 
 

8



36.  ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the President adjourned the meeting 
at 10:31 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, August 29, 2019 or 
an alternate acceptable date, in the Board Room of the District Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 
93923. NOTE: Staff reports and materials regarding these agenda items are available for public 
review Monday through Wednesday of the week immediately prior to the Board Meeting at the 
District Office or at www.cawd.org. After staff reports have been distributed, if additional 
documents are produced by the District and provided to a majority of the Board regarding any 
item on the agenda, they will be available at the District Office during normal business hours.  
Documents distributed at the meeting will be made available in the same manner. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  
       __________________________________________________ 

Domine Barringer, Secretary to the Board 
APPROVED: 
________________________________________________ 
Ken White, President  

9

http://www.cawd.org/


 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT (CAWD)  
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

JULY 30, 2019 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL  The meeting was called to order at 10:05 a.m.    
 
Present:  President: Ken White, Directors: Michael Rachel, Robert Siegfried and Charlotte 

Townsend 
 
Absent:  Director: Greg D’Ambrosio  

 
 
Others:  Robert Wellington, Wellington Law Offices, CAWD District Legal Counsel 
 
 

OPENING SESSION 

1. Appearances/Public Comments:  
There were no appearances or public comments. 

 
2. Agenda Changes:  

There were no agenda changes.   
 
No one addressed the Board before Closed Session.   The Board convened closed session at 10:05 
a.m. 

 

3. CLOSED SESSION: As permitted by Government Code Section 54956 et seq., the Board of Directors 
may adjourn to a Closed Session to consider specific matters dealing with litigation, certain personnel 
matters, real property negotiations, or to confer with the District’s Meyers-Milias-Brown 
representative. 

 
 

A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed 
session to consider a Personnel Matter:  Legal Counsel Performance Evaluation 
 

 

 
B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 the Board will meet in closed session 
to consider a Personnel Matter:  General Manager Performance Evaluation 

 

The Board came back into open session at 12:05 p.m. and Legal Counsel announced that in the 

closed session the Board had taken up and the two listed agenda items.  As to agenda item 3.A – 

performance evaluation of Legal Counsel – the Board concluded that evaluation and provided 

Legal Counsel with his evaluation form.  As to agenda item 3.B – performance evaluation of the 

10



General Manager – the Board Members discussed that matter and gave direction as to the 

further preparation of that evaluation form for a future closed session; no reportable action was 

taken.   

 

4. ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the Board, President White 
adjourned the meeting at 12:06 a.m. The next Regular Meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., 
Thursday, August 29, 2019 or an alternate, acceptable date, in the Board Room of the District 
Office, 3945 Rio Road, Carmel, CA 93923. 

 
As Reported To: 

 

____________________________________________________ 

Kristina Pacheco, Secretary to the Board 

APPROVED: 

________________________________________________ 

Ken White, President 

11



12



13



14



15



Capital Compensated Defend or COUNTY Union Bank Union Bank

Capital Improvement General O & M Accruals Managed  Retreat Total Fund Bank O & M Bank PR L.A.I.F.

Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Reserve Balance Balance Balance Balance

BALANCE BEGINNING OF MONTH $5,571,165 $11,655,296 $11,618,994 $177,695 $1,000,000 $30,023,151 $912,016 $119,453 $1,157,615

Receipts:

   User Fees 7,120

   Property Taxes 

   PBCSD Treatment Fees 180,000

   Reclamation O & M reimbursement 136,056

   Reclamation capital billing

   Permits 745

   PBCSD capital billing

   Other misc. revenue 895

   Interest income 1 7,397

   Connection Fees

   Void checks

   W/C audit refund

   CCLEAN receipts

   Pooled liability dividend

   September Ranch deposits

        Total Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 324,815 1 7,397

Fund Transfers:

   Transfers to Union Bank O&M (398,368) (201,632) 600,000

   Transfers to Union Bank PR (215,000) 215,000

   Transfer to Defend or Managed Retreat Fund (1,000,000) 1,000,000

   Intra-fund transfers for capital expenditures

   Rebalance Capital and O&M Reserves 1,596,031 1,812,511 (3,440,063) 31,521

        Total Transfers 1,596,031 414,143 (3,641,695) 31,521 1,000,000 (600,000) 385,000 215,000 0

Disbursements:

   Operations and capital 1,026,487

   Payroll & payroll taxes 207,648

   Employee Dental reimbursements 6,409

   CALPERS EFT 30,143

   CAWD SAM pension EFT 0

   CAWD pension loans EFT 587

   Home Depot EFT 337

   US Bank EFT 4,594

   Deferred comp contributions EFT 9,558

   PEHP contributions EFT 2,882

   Bank/ADP fees 89 494

   Highlands Bond Debt Service Payment

   Annual County admin billing fee

   Unfunded CALPERS liability 20,347

   GASB 68 report fee

         Total Disbursements 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,088,994 220,581 0

BALANCE END OF MONTH 7,167,196 12,069,438 7,977,300 209,216 2,000,000 29,423,151 532,838 113,873 1,165,012

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements - JULY 2019

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 
 

 

STAFF REPORT     
 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:  Daryl Lauer, Collection Superintendent 

 

DATE:            August 29, 2019   
         
SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – July 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

         

Permits Issued 

 

Sewer Lateral Permits issued in July      ….....................                                                        20 

 

Total Fees.......................................................................................................  $3235.00 

 

 

Maintenance  

 

Attached is a map of the locations cleaned in past three months. There were 2,968 feet of 

Closed‐Circuit Television (CCTV) sewer line inspections during the month of July.   

 

 

Cleaning period  Footage Cleaned Percentage Cleaned Size of Pipe Cleaned

May  48,124 ft.  11.70%  6 – 12 inches 

June  39,321 ft.  9.56%  6 – 12 inches 

July  46,346 ft.  11.27%  6 – 27 inches 

 

 

 

 

 

48



 
 

Construction Activities 

 

Staff completed the replacement of ultra‐sonic transducers and level control readers at 

the pump stations in July. With the completion of this small project, all pump stations 

now have the same transducers and level control readers. This is important in that we 

only need to stock one spare part that will work for all stations. This uniformity of parts 

also crosses over to the treatment plant, they too use the same level controls and 

transducers.  

 

Contractors installed 7 new frame and lids during Carmel‐by‐the‐Sea repaving project 

in July.  

General comments 

 

Staff participated in PBCSD annual Open House on July 20th. This was the first 

opportunity to display our public outreach table. There were team members from 

Collections and Operations that fielded questions and passed out information 

pamphlets.  

 

 

Service Calls Responded to by Crew 

 

Date  Time  Callout Resolution 

7/23/19  11:44 AM  Lateral Spill  Called by homeowner for a lateral 

spill, owner advised to call their 

plumber. 

 

USA Location Requests – 93 

Plumbing permit inspections – 13 

Private Sewer Lateral Compliance Certificates Issued – 7   

          

 

FUNDING 

N/A 

 

 

 

   

49



8/16/2019

50

lauer
Text Box
May (Green) -    48,124 feetJune (Yellow) -  39,321 feetJuly (Red) -       46,346 feet                 Monthly Cleaning Map 



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Mark Dias, Safety and 

Regulatory Compliance Administrator 

 

Date:    Aug 29, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report (for July 2019) 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  

 

Safety & Training 

July 3‐ Tailgate training.  Karla Christi, Plant Administrative Coordinator, presented on 

driving safety and DMV’s new rules for the Federal “Real ID” program. 

 

July 10‐ Tailgate training. Ray DeOcampo, Laboratory Supervisor, gave a presentation 

on snake avoidance, including paying attention to where you are walking and Personal 

Protective Equipment (PPE). It was emphasized to use caution when moving boards 

and plywood as rattlesnakes will take up residence there. 

 

July 17‐ Hazardous Waste Generator Regulations Training.  Mark Dias, Safety and 

Compliance Administrator (S/C Admin Dias), trained staff on Hazardous Waste 

handling, storage and transportation. The week prior S/C Admin Dias had received 8‐

hours of training and certification in this subject. The certification allowed him to 

provide the required awareness level training to staff. Official/formal training materials 

from Monterey County Environmental Health were used. This satisfied training 

requirements found in California Hazardous Waste regulations.  

 

July 24‐ Emergency Response Broadcast drill. S/C Admin Dias and Chris Foley, 

Maintenance Supervisor, coordinated an Emergency Communications broadcasting 

drill. As reported in the July Safety Report, the plant’s new phone system has a 

“broadcast” feature. This allows anyone near a phone to simply push a single button 

which immediately activates the speakers on all phones at the plant. S/C Admin Dias 

51



refreshed staff on how the system works. Chris Foley coordinated the drill wherein staff 

returned to their normal work locations and each group practiced using the system. The 

system worked as intended at all locations.   

 

Ongoing Safety Improvements 

During July Maintenance Superintendent Foley and S/C Admin Dias continued to 

implement safety improvements and seek input from the operations crew and the 

Safety Committee. Many of the physical safety improvements are projects extending 

over weeks or months.  Activities in July included: 

 Respiratory Safety – gas levels at the Calle La Cruz lift station (Ribera Road). 

Background; As described in previous reports, this lift station receives wastewater 

from the Carmel Highlands. The longer travel‐time allows the anaerobic generation 

of dangerous hydrogen sulfide gas. Gas levels were high enough to warrant locking 

the hatch and preventing access until the gas could be mitigated.  Four options were 

identified and are being tried in order of increasing cost. The first two options 

proved ineffective. The third option, dosing liquid calcium nitrate, was started in 

December and showed significant improvement. The dosage rate was increased in 

January/February. The results showed some additional improvement but did not fall 

in proportion to the dosage increase. The dosage was again increased in May to 

three times the initial dosage. The gas levels decreased only marginally which 

shifted focus to reducing the remaining gas generated from Pt. Lobos State Parks. 

This is a second effluent stream pumped separately to Ribera Road. Update; 

Collections staff constructed and installed a second dosing system at Pt. Lobos 

which became operational mid‐July. Gas measurements began in late July. Gas 

levels did not fall significantly. Dosage was increased mid‐August. Monthly 

tracking continuing. 

 Bulk aqueous ammonia system repairs.  Background; as described in previous 

reports, CAWD receives bulk deliveries of 19% aqueous ammonia approximately 

once per month. The bulk tank is outdoors at the tertiary building with permanent 

secondary containment. New gas monitoring equipment showed that ammonia 

vapors were escaping out of the tank lid during the filling process.  Operations staff 

have consistently been required to wear respirators during deliveries. Until the 

system is improved, an Interim Operating Procedure (IOP) has been promulgated.  

Per the IOP staff are now required to remotely monitor the tank level at a safe 

distance using the wireless Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) 

system rather than stand near the tank during filling. CAWD staff intended to 

retrofit the piping and venting rather than purchasing a replacement system. A 

pressure gauge was installed to determine the pressures generated during filling. 

The pressures were monitored during a delivery and showed that the tank lid 

essentially held zero pressure and ammonia levels were still high around the tank. A 

52



new, non‐vented lid was installed in March. The system still would not hold 

pressure and both the lid and the pressure gauge were leaking. Update: The lid was 

reinstalled using a new ammonia resistant sealant along with a diaphragm‐isolated 

gauge. This was a major improvement. Air monitoring showed 0.0 PPM of ammonia 

around the tank and piping during the last delivery. Follow up monitoring showed 

the system also held all vapors during warm afternoons when off‐gassing peaks. 

However, during the delivery there were two unexplained short‐term gas spikes. 

The cause will be investigated. Staff is cautiously optimistic that if the system 

continues to hold pressure during deliveries and on hot days, the plant engineer 

may not need to design a retrofit of the system. Monthly tracking continuing. 

 

Tours and Outreach 

One tour was given in early July to approximately 24 students from a Monterey 

Peninsula College science class.   

 

Injuries; first aid responses; worker compensation claims 

There was one first aid incident in July where an employee sustained a cut to the scalp 

while climbing onto a piece of equipment. The cut was cleaned and the employee 

returned to work without further complications.  Also in July, a case was initially 

opened as a worker’s comp claim when an employee had knee pain after stepping over 

piping. After a series of medical evaluations the claim was denied by CAWD’s Worker 

Compensation insurance carrier as non‐work related.   

 

The updated matrix is below. 

 

  Work Related Injuries and Illnesses for 2019 Reporting Year  

TYPE 

New  

Incidents 

(Month) 

Total  

Incidents 

(Year) 

Total Days Away 

from Work 

(Year) 

Total Days of Job 

Restriction 

(Year) 

Cumulative days 

lost  

(Year) 

OSHA 

Injuries 
0  0  0  0  0 

OSHA 

Illnesses 
0  0  0  0  0 

Other WC 

Claims 
1  1  0  0  0 

First Aid 

(non‐OSHA) 
1  6  0  0  0 

 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

53



% of Total MG

71.046 203.32

28.954 113.06

100.00 316.37

82.097 160.56

11.414 161.13

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR
1174.96 1568.27 N/A N/A

2344.93 2255.78 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) MF/RO statement was adjusted by Monterey Bay Community Power (MBCP) due to March-June
 "billing corrections"

CAWD 1770.27

23,692.08$                           

9,352.35$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

26,228.72$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.186$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

179,775.20

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.202$            

CAWD Total

Jul'19

0.000

0.84726.243

Monthly Totals

1.192

0.345

0.117

0.978

Jul '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

10.695

36.938

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.216

CAWD Total          

24,190.38$  

0.315

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.804 0.923

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

11,211

Mar'19

0

2 QTR

18,248.09$                           

Jun'19July '19 KWh 

39,816.35$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

10.409

Apr'19

9,165.27$     

18,985.21$                           

9,247.47$                              

725,505.00

28,232.68$                           

7,660.09$                              

0

Apr'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

28,038.31$                           

128,369.00

129,604.00

88,931.76

32,193.52$                           

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: July 2019

30.325

0.136

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

COMMENTS

MF/RO (2)

160.56MG (492.76acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

27,347.31$  

8,501.44$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

126.77$        

0.198$            

50,171.20

33,355.65$  35,581.07$  

20,378.22$                           

18,627.98$  

0.219$            21,568.26$                           

19,514.70$  

May'19

346.80

494.25

0.000

307.59 MG (943.98 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.119

0.796

Jun'19

0.382

1.140

0.205

970.47

8.08 BG (24.78 B acre-ft.)

1.305

623.67

492.51

0.000

33,745.82$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR
1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

217,300.76 19,641.47$  45,975.29$  

2019

21,476.72$                              

2164.89

54



Month

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Jul 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

55



% of Total MG

66.005 177.07

33.995 102.36

100.00 279.44

82.840 130.23

11.817 156.91

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR
1174.96 1568.27 N/A N/A

2344.93 2255.78 N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

217,044.04 45,975.29$  39,816.35$  

2019

20,779.51$                              

2164.89

58,551.43$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR
1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1.296

0.191

857.16

8.05 BG (24.69 B acre-ft.)

1.532

543.17

399.49

0.000

Apr'19

314.00

481.32

0.000

308.93 MG (948.12 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.157

0.923

May'19

0.612

27,347.31$  

0.192$            

51,819.36

32,193.52$  33,355.65$  

20,620.81$                           

18,248.09$  

0.209$            18,985.21$                           

18,627.98$  

COMMENTS

MF/RO

130.23MG (399.69acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

21,568.26$  

7,660.09$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: June 

2019

31.196

0.148

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

0

Mar'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

27,027.09$                           

127,753.00

121,483.00

89,291.04

28,038.31$                           

Apr'19

8,501.44$     

1,689.48$                              

2,064.83$                              

714,294.00

3,754.31$                              

6,406.28$                              

10,409

Mar'19

0

2 QTR

9,247.47$                              

May'19June '19 KWh 

28,232.68$                           

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.805 0.920

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

12.802

37.658

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

4.450

CAWD Total          

23,692.08$  

0.352

Jun'19

0.000

0.82824.856

Monthly Totals

1.255

0.427

0.124

1.040

Jun '19 kWh

0.177$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

173,302.36

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.199$            

CAWD Total

CAWD 1770.27

20,378.22$                           

9,165.27$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

24,190.38$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

56



Month

Jul 18

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Jun 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

57



% of Total MG

64.344 152.22

35.656 89.56

100.00 241.78

75.422 99.04

19.618 152.46

0.000 0.000

1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4 QTR
1174.96 N/A N/A N/A

2344.93 N/A N/A N/A

(1) Cost adjustment for Reclamation perentage for Secondary power costs and CAWD's percentage for Tertiary's 

power costs due to the Lab's power usage

(2) Micro Turbine system off-line the month of May due to equipment malfunction

CAWD 1770.27

20,620.81$                           

8,501.44$     

Reclamation

1692.20 1678.08

Reclaim Total

23,692.08$  

Adjusted Monthly 

Totals (1)

0.179$            

Tertiary

Total Annual Reclamation Production (2019)                      

192,182.32

0.000

Ocean Discharge

Price per kWh

0.164$            

CAWD Total

May'19

0.000

0.82025.428

Monthly Totals

1.275

0.455

0.084

0.961

May '19 kWh

HYDRAULIC LOADINGS

14.091

39.519

Avg. Daily, 

MGD

Total 

Monthly, MG

7.753

CAWD Total          

20,378.22$  

0.366

Wastewater Treatment Facility Operations Report

PBCSD Flow

Total Plant Flow

Tertiary Flow

0.727 1.111

2019 YEAR-TO-DATE

acre-feet
Max Daily, 

MGD

Min Daily, 

MGD

0 (2)

Feb'19

0

2 QTR

2,064.83$                              

Apr'19May '19 KWh 

3,754.31$                              

kW-h Per Acre Foot

0

Mar'19

7,660.09$     

7,268.91$                              

9,880.24$                              

703,885.00

17,149.15$                           

6,014.36$                              

0

Feb'19

2018

Accumulated Totals

27,730.22$                           

102,744.00

144,776.00

93,201.48

27,027.09$                           

Potable Water

CAWD Flow

Blowers

Secondary

TERTIARY PROCESS HISTORY

Report for: May 

2019

29.806

0.250

12 Month Rolling Total Reclamation Production               

COMMENTS

MF/RO

99.04MG (303.95acre-ft.)

Total Lifetime Reclamation Production (94-19)                 

18,985.21$  

6,406.28$                              

ELECTRICAL COSTS

Month

Production,kWh 

21,568.26$  

0.168$            

47,406.32

28,038.31$  32,193.52$  

21,715.86$                           

9,247.47$     

0.196$            1,689.48$                              

18,248.09$  

Mar'19

274.73

467.67

0.000

306.97 MG (942.08 acre-ft.)

0.000

1.093

0.209

Apr'19

0.651

1.373

1.647

741.65

8.01 BG (24.59 B acre-ft.)

1.762

466.92

303.79

0.000

52,313.18$                           

MICROTURBINE SUMMARY

4 QTR
1883.03

2254.65

1 QTR 3 QTR

1780.18 2260.45

 Reclamation Total                                      

195,945.48 39,816.35$  28,232.68$  

2019

19,696.69$                              

2164.89

58



Month

Jun 18

Jul 18

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

Apr 19

May 19

Totals

Average

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

80.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Outflow Outfall Flow, mg

Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Discharge, mg

0.000

10.000

20.000

30.000

40.000

50.000

60.000

70.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Inflow PBCSD Influent Flow, mg

CAWD Influent Flow, mg

Total Influent Flow, mg

-5.000

5.000

15.000

25.000

35.000

45.000

55.000

65.000

Jun 18 Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19

Total Golf Course Usage
Tertiary Flow, mg

Total Potable, mg

Total Golf Course, mg

59



STAFF REPORT  
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Ray De Ocampo 

Laboratory/Environmental Compliance 

Supervisor 

 

Date:    August 29, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Report – July 2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; No action required 

 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

LABORATORY REPORT 

 Laboratory Analyst/ Environmental Compliance Inspector Trevor Weidner 

Holland attended the Pebble Beach Open House and Safety Day on July 20, 2019. 

Mr. Holland helped with staffing the CAWD Community Outreach Program 

Booth. 

 

 Mr. De Ocampo attended two meetings on July 22,2019; first for the BioWin 

Modeling Project, and second for the CAWD Sewer System Management Plan 

with Causey Consulting.  CAWD Laboratory staff will be involved with the two 

projects. 

 

 Mr. Trevor Weidner Holland attend a training class for Management & 

Supervisory Leadership at South San Francisco from July 23‐25, 2019.   

 

 The Laboratory and Operations microscopes had their annual Preventative 

Maintenance performed on July 31, 2019. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

 Mr. De Ocampo, Mr. Lauer and Mr. Waggoner met with Mr. Peter Rehage from 

60



Protein Matrix.  They were looking for a test location to set up a trial of the 

Protein Matrix Eliminator product.  The Protein Matrix Eliminator is a different 

product than the bacteria and enzyme products that are sold to restaurants for 

their grease trap maintenance.  It is a plant‐based cleaner that keeps the oil 

molecules from attaching to themselves to create a thick mat which helps 

maintain a cleaner collection system and prevents grease buildup at the 

treatment plant.  The test location is at the Highlands Inn Pump Station.  Mr. 

Rehage has supplied a quantity of four 5‐gallon buckets for the study and 

CAWD staff will report back to him on how the product is working.  See 

attachment: Protein Matrix ‐ Eliminator. 

 

Restaurant Inspection Table 

 

Restaurant  Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Rio Grill  Yes     

The Cottages of Carmel  Yes     

RG Burger  Yes

Sea Harvest Fish Market  Yes     

Subway  Yes     

Mountain Mike Pizza  Yes     

Carmel Mission Inn  No  Excessive Grease  Warning Notice issued; 

Follow‐up inspection 

grease trap compliant on 

7‐10‐19. 

China Delight  Yes     

Island Taco  Yes     

Del Mesa Carmel  No  Mechanical 

Blockage 

Warning Notice issued; 

Trap needs to get 

emptied.  Grease trap 

compliant on follow up 

07‐17‐19. 

   

 

 

 

Grocery Store/Delicatessen Inspection Table 

Grocery 

Store/Delicatessen  Compliant 

Reason for Non‐

Compliance 

 

Comments 

Safeway  Yes     

 

61



 

 

Restaurant Compliance Table 

% Compliance  Maintenance Mechanical

May 2019  99%  99% 

June 2019  100%  100% 

July 2019  99%  99% 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

Protein Matrix ‐ Eliminator 

 

62



1254 SW 6th Street • Pompano Beach FL 33069 • 954-781-9204
www.proteinmatrix.com

E L I M I N A T O R
COMMERCIAL GREASE TRAP CLEANER AND MAINTAINER

 

E L I M I N A T O R
COMMERCIAL GREASE TRAP CLEANER AND MAINTAINER

 

PLANT-BASED

KEEPS GREASE TRAPS CLEAN

PREVENTS CLOGS

REDUCES MAINTENANCE

MINIMIZES RISK

ONE MONTH 
WITHOUT ELIMINATOR

THREE MONTHS 
WITH ELIMINATOR

THICK GREASE MAT NO GREASE BUILDUP

HELPS MAINTAIN COMPLIANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

DISTRIBUTED BY

HOW DOES ELIMINATOR WORK?
• CONVERTS GREASE ON A MOLECULAR LEVEL

• STABILIZES MOLECULES IN SOLUTION

• PREVENTS THEM FROM STICKING TOGETHER

BEFORE AFTER

www.proteinmatrix.com

0

30

60

90

120

FO
G 

(m
g/

L)

Grease Trap Effluent: Oil and Grease (FOG)

BEFORE TREATMENT:
Rising grease level

Cleanout
(pumping)

BLUE LINE REPRESENTS GREASE LEVEL OVER TIME

Grease Trap Effluent: Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

BLUE LINE REPRESENTS BOD LEVEL OVER TIME

DURING TREATMENT:
Grease Decrease!

0

400

800

1200

1600

BO
D 

(m
g/

L)

BEFORE TREATMENT:
Rising BOD level

Cleanout
(pumping)

BEFORE AFTER

ELIMINATOR CONVERTS GREASE TO A LIQUID THAT 
WILL NOT RE-SOLIDIFY IN YOUR PIPES

HELPS KEEP DOWNSTREAM PIPES 
CLEAN TO PREVENT BACKUPS

WITH TREATMENT:
BOD Decrease!

63



HOW CAN ELIMINATOR HELP YOUR BUSINESS?
• PREVENTS THE BUILDUP OF SOLID GREASE IN GREASE   
 TRAPS AND INTERCEPTORS

• SAVES YOU MONEY BY REDUCING GREASE TRAP 
 MAINTENANCE COSTS

• REDUCES THE RISK OF CLOGS, OVERFLOWS, FINES, AND  
 LOST BUSINESS

• LETS YOU RUN YOUR BUSINESS WITHOUT WORRYING   
 ABOUT YOUR GREASE TRAPS

• REDUCES ODORS

HOW IS ELIMINATOR DIFFERENT?
• ELIMINATOR IS A PLANT-BASED FORMULATION

• ELIMINATOR CONTAINS NO BACTERIA AND NO ENZYMES, SO  
 GREASE WILL NOT RE-SOLIDIFY IN PIPES

• UNLIKE OTHER GREASE TRAP MAINTENANCE PRODUCTS,   
 ELIMINATOR HAS BEEN APPROVED FOR USE BY REGULATORY  
 AGENCIES SUCH AS NSF, WATER AUTHORTIES, AND 
 PLUMBING BOARDS

BEFORE AFTER

 

ELIMINATOR WORKS IN ANY INTERCEPTOR, PREVENTING 
THE FORMATION OF SOLID GREASE 

THAT CAN LEAD TO EXPENSIVE MAINTENANCE

CAN YOU REALLY AFFORD THE RISK?
• GREASE TRAP MAINTENANCE CAN COST FOOD SERVICE   
 ESTABLISHMENTS THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS PER YEAR

• CLEANING GREASE TRAPS RELEASES STRONG FOUL ODORS  
 INTO YOUR KITCHEN OR PARKING LOT

• GREASE IN YOUR WATER IS CLASSIFIED AS A POLLUTANT -  
 THE WATER AUTHORITY CAN LEVY FINES ON YOUR 
 BUSINESS 

• A GREASE CLOG/OVERFLOW CAN LEAD TO SUBSTANTIAL  
 COSTS FOR YEARS:

  •  LOST BUSINESS

  •  CLEANUP SERVICES

  •  FINES

  •  INSURANCE PREMIUM INCREASES

TESTIMONIALS

www.proteinmatrix.com

E L I M I N A T O R

In response to your request for approval to use Protein Matrix Eliminator in MWRA's 
Sewerage Service for grease reduction, I have reviewed the white paper and data you 
submitted, as well as the videos of sewer pipes taken downstream of three high schools in 
which the Protein Matrix Eliminator was tested. The videos were taken after Protein 
Matrix Eliminator was used in the cafeterias of Medford, Somerville, and Woburn high 
schools for a period of several months to test the effects of Protein Matrix Eliminator on 
fat, oil, and grease (FOG) accumulation in the pipes and at each of the high schools and 
downstream. The information you submitted with your request states that Protein Matrix 
Eliminator is a plant-based protein that facilitates a chemical reaction converting FOG 
molecules into a benign liquid that is compatible with wastewater collection systems. The 
information states that the product is not flammable, toxic, or corrosive, and contains no 
hazardous ingredients. 

MWRA approves Protein Matrix Eliminator for use in collection systems in the MWRA 
Sewer Service Area based on all the above referenced information, as authorized by 360 
CMR 10.017.

“At Woburn Public School in Massachusetts we had to pump our 10,000 gal grease trap tank 
three times a year and pressure jet the sewer line.  After one year of using Eliminator I am 
totally amazed at what the product can do.  It only takes a few ounces per day and will save 
the district thousands of dollars.”

“After three months of using Eliminator, we have no solid grease buildup in any of our 
traps.  No adverse effects, this product is a great alternative to having to pump our traps 
regularly.”

64



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

0 Projects Implementation Plan Schedule Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $23,143,000.00

1 Treatment Plant Projects Mon 4/2/18 Tue 6/30/26 $15,014,000.00

2 18-01 Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding 
Tank Replacement Project

Treanor Mon 4/30/18 Thu 11/4/21 $10,150,000.00

8 18-02 Ops Building Historian and Reporting Foley Mon 4/2/18 Tue 12/31/19 $140,000.00

12 18-03 CMMS Improvements (Ops Rounds) Foley Wed 7/11/18 Mon 9/30/19 $100,000.00

15 18-09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab Waggoner Thu 7/5/18 Fri 8/30/19 $250,000.00

19 18-05 PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL 
RECLAMATION)

Foley Mon 10/8/18 Tue 7/13/21 $300,000.00

30 18-08 Standby Power Reliability Project Treanor Mon 10/8/18 Fri 10/23/20 $730,000.00

36 18-07 Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and 
Cleaning

Treanor/Young Fri 3/15/19 Fri 3/6/20 $125,000.00

43 18-11 Microturbine Integration Project Treanor/Foley Tue 6/4/19 Tue 6/30/20 $510,000.00

48 19-01 Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations 
(PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Mon 6/29/20 $100,000.00

49 Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20 Waggoner Mon 3/2/20 Fri 7/31/20 $140,000.00

52 19-10 1 Water Corrosion Control Waggoner Mon 7/1/19 Fri 6/12/20 $30,000.00

53 Cathodic Protection Testing Treanor Wed 7/3/19 Tue 6/30/20 $30,000.00

54 18-28 Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/30/26 $120,000.00

55 Plant Fence Replacement Treanor Mon 12/2/19 Tue 7/20/21 $150,000.00

59 Cart Charging and Parking Foley Mon 2/3/20 Fri 8/13/21 $50,000.00

60 Operations Bldg Basement Renovation Waggoner Mon 2/3/20 Tue 6/30/20 $50,000.00

61 Plant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 3/29/22 $50,000.00

62 Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs Treanor Fri 1/1/21 Mon 3/29/21 $44,000.00

65 Lagoon Crossing Rehabilitation Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $300,000.00

66 RAS Pump/Piping Rehab Treanor Tue 2/1/22 Wed 6/1/22 $0.00

67 Lunch Room MCC Replace with 
Panelboard

Foley Wed 6/1/22 Thu 11/3/22 $140,000.00

70 Treatment Plant Studies & O&M Manuals Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 7/24/24 $270,000.00

71 19-14 BioWin Modeling Treanor Fri 6/28/19 Wed 3/4/20 $50,000.00

72 Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan Treanor Fri 11/1/19 Tue 9/1/20 $35,000.00

73 Life Expectancy Analysis Treanor Wed 9/2/20 Fri 7/2/21 $35,000.00

74 Online O&M Manual Treanor Wed 9/1/21 Wed 7/24/24 $150,000.00

75 Reclamation Projects Wed 5/9/18 Tue 6/1/21 $1,235,000.00

76 18-24 Reclamation Sand Filter Integration 
Project

Waggoner Wed 5/9/18 Sun 6/30/19 $100,000.00

82 18-26 RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and 
Containment

Treanor Fri 6/8/18 Wed 5/13/20 $415,000.00

87 18-25 EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical Foley Mon 10/8/18 Mon 9/30/19 $80,000.00

88 19-12 MF/RO Sound Barriers Treanor Mon 7/29/19 Fri 12/27/19 $80,000.00

Treatment Plant Projects

Mech/Elec Rehab and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project

Ops Building Historian and Reporting

CMMS Improvements (Ops Rounds)

Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehab

PLC/SCADA Programming (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Standby Power Reliability Project

Digester No. 1 & Old No. 2 Purging and Cleaning

Microturbine Integration Project

Critical Process Onsite Flood Mitigations (PARTIAL RECLAMATION)

Aeration Basin Improvements 19/20

1 Water Corrosion Control

Cathodic Protection Testing

Perimeter Tree Plan and Implementation

Plant Fence Replacement

Cart Charging and Parking

Operations Bldg Basement Renovation

Plant Paving, Vault Lids, DrainagePlant Paving, Vault Lids, Drainage

Chlorine Contact Pipe Gallery Repairs

Lagoon C

RAS PRAS P

Lunc

Treatment Plant Stu

BioWin Modeling

Coastal Hazards Monitoring Plan

Life Expectancy Analysis

Reclamation Projects

Reclamation Sand Filter Integration Project

RO Pretreatment Acid Tanks and Containment

EQ Basin Pump Electrical/Mechanical

MF/RO Sound Barriers

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

65



ID Project 
Number

Task Name Manager Start Finish Cost

89 19-16 Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power Treanor Mon 7/29/19 Fri 5/1/20 $350,000.00

90 19-15 MF Feed Pipe Replacement Treanor Wed 1/29/20 Tue 6/30/20 $35,000.00

91 Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection 
Testing

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $25,000.00

92 Painting Project Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 12/1/20 $75,000.00

93 Reclamation Studies Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 6/1/21 $75,000.00

94 Trussell MF/RO Performance Review Treanor Mon 7/1/19 Tue 3/31/20 $40,000.00

95 Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management 
Assessment

Treanor Wed 7/1/20 Tue 6/1/21 $35,000.00

96 Collections Projects Mon 4/16/18 Tue 6/11/24 $8,129,000.00

97 19-02 Pretreatment Ordinance Lather Fri 11/15/19 Fri 3/13/20 $0.00

98 18-16 Highlands H2S Control Lauer Mon 4/16/18 Mon 9/30/19 $0.00

100 18-17 Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road 
Maintenance

Lather Wed 5/23/18 Wed 10/20/21 $1,450,000.00

101 18-18 Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement Foley/Lather Wed 7/18/18 Thu 2/13/20 $600,000.00

102 19-03 Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer 
Improvements

Lather Fri 3/15/19 Wed 2/10/21 $1,294,000.00

103 19-11 Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer 
Replacement

Lather Thu 5/30/19 Thu 11/7/19 $150,000.00

104 19-07 Rio Road CIPP Lining Project Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 8/28/20 $1,340,000.00

105 18-27 Highlands FM ARVs Lauer Thu 8/1/19 Thu 11/14/19 $60,000.00

106 Highlands FM Flushing Lauer Wed 7/1/20 Mon 11/30/20 $75,000.00

110 18-29 September Ranch Water and Sewer Lather Fri 3/1/19 Fri 7/30/21 $0.00

114 19-13 Upper Rancho Canada Upsize Line Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 2/2/24 $1,500,000.00

115 Rancho Canada New Development Line Lather Wed 11/6/19 Tue 6/11/24 $1,500,000.00

116 Assessment Districts/Annexations Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $55,000.00

117 19-09 2019 Mass Annexation Lather Fri 3/15/19 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

118 18-21 Corona Road Assessment District Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

119 19-05 Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection Lather Thu 8/2/18 Mon 1/6/20 $0.00

120 19-08 Carmel Valley Manor Sewer Lather Tue 7/3/18 Wed 9/30/20 $0.00

121 19-04 Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension Lather Mon 5/6/19 Thu 1/9/20 $55,000.00

122 Collections Studies / Reports Lauer/Lather Fri 2/1/19 Fri 11/1/19 $105,000.00

123 Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment Lauer/Lather Fri 2/1/19 Wed 7/17/19 $75,000.00

124 19-06 Collection System SSMP Lauer/Lather Mon 7/1/19 Fri 11/1/19 $30,000.00

Tertiary MF/RO Standby Power

MF Feed Pipe Replacement

Reclamation Line Cathodic Protection Testing

Painting Project

Reclamation Studies

Trussell MF/RO Performance Review

Reclamation 15-Year Asset Management Assessment

Collections Projects

Pretreatment Ordinance

Highlands H2S Control

Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road MaintenanceHatton Canyon Pipe Bursting and Road Maintenance

Pump Station PLC/SCADA Replacement

Carmel Meadows Gravity Sewer Improvements

Monte Verde at 2nd Ave Sewer Replacement

Rio Road CIPP Lining Project

Highlands FM ARVs

Highlands FM Flushing

September Ranch Water and Sewer

Upper Rancho Canada 

Rancho Canada 

Assessment Districts/Annexations

2019 Mass Annexation

Corona Road Assessment District

Riley Ranch Annexation/Connection

Carmel Valley Manor Sewer

Yankee Point and Otter Cove Highlands Extension

Collections Studies / Reports

Monte Verde and Bay/Scenic FM Assessment

Collection System SSMP

H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2 H1 H2
2018 2019 2020 2021

66



 
 1

 

 
 
Staff Report       
 

 

TO:    Board of Directors 

 

FROM:   Ed Waggoner                                               

Operations Superintendent 

 

SUBJECT:  Monthly Report – July 2019 

 

DATE:            August 29, 2019                   

 

                           

RECOMMENDATION  

 

Receive Report‐Informational only; no action required 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Plant Operation 

Treatment Plant: 

•    The Treatment Plant operations staff has been wrapping up projects and concentrating  

on Preventative Maintenance Work Orders during the month of July. 

 

•    Project # 18‐09 Secondary Clarifier #1 ERS Industrial Services, Inc.  is in the process of 
media blasting and coating of the launders, weirs, and sludge collection system and 

making repairs to the basin as necessary. 

 

•    Project #18‐10 Aeration Basins 5 & 6 rehabilitation is complete and currently online.  

 

Reclamation: 

•  CAWD Staff continues working with H2O Innovations on the remote communication and 

monitoring of the Micro Filtration and Reverse Osmosis systems to the following parties; 

Trussell Technologies, Scinor Water America, Evoqua Water Technologies and Carmel 

Area Wastewater District. CAWD staff is still waiting for the final connection as there are 

 

 

67



 
 2

complications with the firewall. Exceedio and H2O Innovations are currently in direct 

contact with each other on remedying those complications.  

  

• CAWD staff performed two Clean‐in‐place (CIP) on Micro Filtration (MF) cell number 3 

which houses the Scinor membranes in July due to high TMPs.  

 

• Project # 18‐24 Reclamation Sand Filter  Integration Project: CAWD  staff  installed new 

airlines  to  the  backwash  system.  Staff  began  operation  of  sand  filtration  equipment 

including backwashing pumps and backwash clarifier during the week of July 28th. 

 

Training: 

•   Plant in‐house training continues with weekly Safety meetings.  

 

•   Operations Superintendent continues Operations training on Tuesday afternoon on 
Operational Processes which is mandatory for Operations Staff and is available to 

Laboratory, Maintenance, Collection and any other CAWD employees.  

 

Capital Improvement Phase 2 

•   Staff continues to communicate with Patrick Treanor (CAWD) on the 

Electrical/Mechanical Rehabilitation and Sludge Holding Tank Replacement Project for 

the following areas; Influent Pump Station, Headworks, Blower Building, 

Chlor/Dechlor Building, Effluent Building, Digester No. 1, Digester No. 1 Control 

Building and Dewatering Building.  

 

Meetings Attended 

 Monterey County Water Awareness Committee meeting July 11th, 2019 at Marina 

Coast Water District offices in Marina.  

 

 Monterey Water Works Association Board meeting June 11th in Moss Landing. 

 

 Neuro Color Workshop at Carmel Area Wastewater District main office on July 11th. 

 

 Treatment Plant Modeling meeting at Carmel Area Wastewater Facility on July 22 

with Plant Engineer and Greeley & Hansen‐Environmental Engineers. Project# 19‐14 

 

 Oversite Committee meeting on July 24th to discuss operational strategies for the 

upcoming quarter at Pebble Beach Community Service District Offices. 

 

Discharge Permit Violations 

•   No Reclamation Permit 93‐72 discharge violations for the month of July 2019. 

 

68



 
 3

•    No Violations on the NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) 

NPDES Number CA0047996, Order No. R3‐2014‐0012 for the month of July 2019. 

   

 

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐Informational item only 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Edward Waggoner 

 

 

         

 

 

         

 

   

 

69



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    August 29, 2019 

 

Subject:  Monthly Maintenance Report – July 2019 

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Maintenance Projects in Progress 

 

 (Project 18‐09) The secondary clarifier coating is scheduled to be complete in 

mid‐August. The electrical work will then be completed and the drain piping 

will be reinstalled so the clarifier can be placed back online.  

 

 (Project 18‐25) A second pump and associated piping is being installed in the 

Equalization Basin (EQ). This will provide redundancy for the EQ basin 

pumping.  

 

 

Upcoming Maintenance Projects 

 

 A bypass of the influent flow meter is scheduled for August to inspect the inside 

of the pipe and remove any grit from the pipe header.  

 

 The programmable logic controller (PLC) for the microturbine system will be 

upgraded from the older model to the standard ControlLogix model. This work 

will include adding the new PLC to the network for better control and 

monitoring of the microturbine system.  

 

 (Project 18‐18) The submittal for the pump station control panel upgrade project 

has been received. Comments were provided so that production can begin on the 

70



control panels.  

 

Staff Development 

 

 No updates.  

 

Work Order Metrics 

Preventive Maintenance      

       
Total Work Orders Generated      245

Total Work Orders Closed/Done      227

Total Work Orders Still Open      18

Percentage of Work Orders Completed      92.65%

       
Corrective Maintenance      
 

         

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

  Emergency  3       

  Critical   5       

  Urgent  14       

  Routine  12       
 

 

FUNDING 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

71



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 

From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 

Date:              August 29, 2019 
 

Subject:          General Engineering 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

Receive Report‐ Informational only; no action required. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 

 

This report is provided to update the Board on current engineering activities. 

 

General Engineering 

 

The Principal Engineer continues to work on projects related to the 2019 Annexation, 

including Carmel Manor and Corona Road.  The environmental review process for the 

annexation has commenced and is anticipated to be completed this fall. 
 
 
 

SRT Consultants (SRT) has completed the research portion (Task 1) of the due diligence 

engineering study of September Ranch water system and have completed much of the 

remaining tasks.  We have reviewed the test results for the green sand filter process 

and the Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) levels were high enough that we requested that 

the developer use a Reverse Osmosis (RO) system for treatment of the well water.   

 

Dan Keig has not signed the agreement or provided funding for the Yankee Point 

Project design contract with MNS.  While on vacation, Mr. Keig met with the General 

Manager and decided to pull out of the project because of a disagreement about 

reimbursement of District costs.  The General Manager has reached out to Mr. Keig’s 

attorney to confirm that this is the direction Mr. Keig wants to go. If true, it may be 

beneficial to delete that area from the annexation we are planning to complete in order 

to reduce the environmental impacts associated with the annexation. 

 

 

 

72



 

Collections 

 

Hatton Canyon Pipe Bursting project bids were opened on July 23, 2019 and the low 

(and only) bidder was KJ Woods Construction in the amount of $1,038,000.  Federal 

Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) did not make the deadline of July 24, 2019 to 

provide funding for construction this year.  If FEMA does not give us approval by 

August 22, 2019, we are considering  re‐bidding the project after the grant is awarded 

in order to get a more competitive bid for the project. 

 

Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE) is scheduled to start construction of  the Monte 

Verde Sewer Replacement project on September 3, 2019.  A preconstruction meeting 

was held with MPE on August 14, 2019 at the District office. 

  

FUNDING 

 

N/A‐ Informational item only 

 

 

 

 

 

73



 
STAFF REPORT       
                 

 

   
To:     Board of Directors   

 

From:     Patrick Treanor, Plant Engineer 

 

Subject:    #18‐28 ‐ Landscape Design Contract for Planning work Regarding WWTP 

Perimeter Trees and Interior Landscaping – Hall Landscape Design  

 

Date:    August 29, 2019 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It  is  recommended  that  the  Board  of  Directors  adopt  a  resolution  authorizing  the 

General  Manger  to  execute  a  contract  with  Hall  Landscape  Design  for  $27,375  to 

develop  a  plan  for  potential  removal  of  the  existing  eucalyptus  trees  around  the 

wastewater  treatment plant  (WWTP) and  replacement with native  trees  that also will 

adequately screen the WWTP from public view. The planning work would also include 

landscaping design of areas inside the fence where people gather. 

 
DISCUSSION 
 

This contract work would be the jumping off point for Project #18‐28. The project would 

span the course of many years if the new tree plan proves to be feasible. The planning 

work included in this resolution aims to develop preliminary plans and strategies for 

potentially removing the eucalyptus trees that surround the WWTP and replacing them 

with native species. The eucalyptus trees provide an excellent visual screen of the 

WWTP from the surrounding area, however they do require ongoing maintenance 

including trimming the top of the trees to limit the height and mitigate trees falling in 

high winds. The trees were planted about 40 years ago and with proper care could 

potentially last another 100 years more. 

 

 

74



The thinking around this work is to investigate the extent of work required for CAWD 

to further align the treatment plant with goals of our neighbors (i.e. the State Parks and 

City of Carmel). The State Parks is supportive of removing the eucalyptus trees because 

they are non‐native and considered invasive. Staff believes that we should try to be 

good neighbors and members of the community and investigate the possibility of 

replacing the eucalyptus. 

 

The eucalyptus would not be cut down until native trees grow up to provide an 

adequate screen. Therefore, the planting of new trees would occur outside the existing 

eucalyptus so they can grow up for 10+ years before the eucalyptus are removed. The 

ability of native trees to screen the WWTP adequately will be investigated in this 

planning work as well as how the sequence of planting and cutting would be done. It is 

unknown at this time if native trees will provide an equivalent or a suitable screen for 

surrounding homes; and this will be one question we will attempt to answer in the 

planning work.   

 

In addition, the work scope includes design of re‐landscaping and planting of common 

areas inside the fence of the WWTP where people gather and around the entrance to the 

facility. The goal of the interior facility landscaping is to improve the look of the 

treatment plant and make it an even more attractive place.  

 

Three landscape contractors with design abilities were contacted regarding this work. 

Two contractors came onsite for a tour, and we received only one proposal. 

 

FUNDING 

     

The funding for this contract will come from existing capital reserves.  

 

ATTACHMENTS 

     

1. Hall Landscape Design proposal dated 13 December 2018 

 

75



December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
P.O. Box 221428  
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 
Re. Landscape perimeter screen renovation plus the interior facilities landscape design 
 
Dear Barbara, 
 
The following Landscape Design  is based upon meeting review with you and your crew a 
couple of weeks past.   
 
The project appears as two main design projects.  The perimeter Eucalyptus strategic tree 
removal is a stand-alone restoration habitat project.  While the interior facility grounds are 
made up of many nooks and interesting exposures and zones to plant, I have treated them 
as one project. All the interior planted spaces should relate as a contiguous design whole.    
 
The exterior will be an ongoing phasing project with the most moving parts of the two 
designs.  And while logical and followed practices can be drawn upon in the history of 
large-scale Eucalyptus removal in California, this one is unique in the direction to 
accommodate neighboring views into the facility while screening with new plants that will 
take time to grow.  Not only would we present the project as a good neighbor in the 
procedures to preserve the view into the CAWD facility and keep that peace;  but the very 
real compliance with State Parks and Environmental habitat protocols will be required it 
will remain important to balance. 
 
 
While this all can be defined with the best plant choices for replacement into the habitat 
the timing and understanding our success over time makes will be an outdoor class room.   
Basically, for me this is prescribing and working through requirements with your agency as 
the lead in writing the CEQA California Environmental Quality Act as it most likely will be 
required. My office will support the document with plans and detailing, much to be defined 
as the project progresses. 
 
At this point I am unsure of the time to allot for meetings and have set total hours for 
various possibilities.  The design and production time are much easier to figure.  I have 
given a general scope of design services, allotted time for meetings and estimated the 
number of hours it will take based upon the office fee schedule.  This amount is a target 
budget number and may or may not be reached. Time during construction for site review 
will be hourly as this extent and phasing is unknow at the outset. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

76



December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District                                       Landscape Design Proposal 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
 
 
 
In the Agreement the Perimeter surrounding the CAWD facilities fence is dealt with as to 
three locations:  (1.) Entry & South side of the facilities (2.) West side wrapping around 
opposite Rio Park and Mission Fields and (3.) The Monterey Diocese fence line  
back to the main entry. 
 
The interior landscape design shall be divided into logical graphic sheet depictions such as 
the actual working zones and the main campus adjacent to offices, lunch room and 
changing area.  The Entry inside of the fence will also extend a more filled out planting 
arrival from the road. 
 
To better understand the extent of each of the zones outside the compound and inside for 
design the scale and sheet inclusion will be easy to pick out.  An introduction key will index 
all the areas.  Essentially a larger scale makes the install easier in the field. Additionally, 
figured are some sketches along with the plan views.   
Presentation drawings have been also figured which will draw from photorealistic drawing 
over the photo for Public meeting consumption. 
 
Construction Plans shall also include an irrigation plan, projected water use calculations to 
satisfy MPWD and State Auditors which probably be required.  Of course, Plants species, 
location and specifications for installation all figure in the mx. 
 
I look forward to working with you. 
Best regards, 
Scott 
 
 
 
 
Scott Hall, landscape architect 
Hall Landscape Design 
 

 
 
CC: Patrick Treanor, P.E. Plant Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 

77



 
Work Order Agreement                                                         page 1 of 2  
December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
Attn. Barbara Buikema, General Manager  
P.O. Box 221428  
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 
Project: Perimeter Eucalyptus replacement and Interior Facilities Landscaping. 
Project Scope:  Landscape Plans / planting, irrigation and details 
 
1. Meetings with Carmel Area Waste Water District (CAWD) Manger and review Staff 
2. Perimeter solutions for installation strategies for replacing the Eucalyptus hedge 
3. Perimeter plan showing plant replacement locations, size, quantities 
4. Interior Facilities Planting zones throughout the campus and emphasis on the main 
      Entry and People gathering spaces. 
5. Irrigation layout plans which include projected water use formulas compliment to  
 MPWD and State of California notation.  
 
I. Design Mobilization 

A. Project Mobilization tasks 
a. Receive current scaled digital drawing survey of the CAWD Plant and property 

Meets and boundaries of the property from the Plant Engineer.  
b. Any perimeter plan information per grades and etc.  
c.    A delineated piping diagram overlay of any utilities as electrical and water & sewer 

lines and etc. which pertain to the areas under discussion to be planted 
 

B.  Landscape Scope: Prescribed Eucalyptus Grove Removal 
a. Removal of all Eucalyptus globulus around the CAWD Plant Facilities property 

boundary.  Presentation Sheets shall include graphic demonstration areas: 
1. Entry and along the Southwest property boundary line 
2. North East boundary facing City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Rio Park & Mission 

Fields housing development 
3. East side along the Monterey Diocese fence line back to the Main Facilities 

Entry point.   
4. Planting with in the CAWD Facilities Plant showing plant species location, 

quantities and sizes 
5. Preliminary drawings first reviewed followed by Construction Documents 

 
b. Irrigation:  map and verify all zones new and possibly using some undamaged 

existing piping from the source point of landscape irrigation connection.  A line plan 
diagram locating dispersal points (valves) and connecting he system back to control 
clock. 

1. Create and review Projected  Water Use Allocation for the site for review by 
water agencies, MPWMD and etc.   
 

c.   Presentation:  Plan, Sketch and Photo realistic rendering for the  
Public elevation from the southwest and the Entry Gate area 

78



  
 
Work Order Agreement                                                         page 2 of 2  
December 13, 2018 
 
 
Carmel Area Wastewater District 
3945 Rio Rd. 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93922 
 

 
II. Meetings 

 
A. Allotted time with the General Manager & Staff on site & e-mail notes 8-12 hours  
B. Meetings with City of Carmel-by-the- Sea Forestry Dept. and Planning & 

Building Dept………………4-6 hours 
C. Meetings with State Parks, Fish & Game and Coast Biologists  

(all if necessary) ………..allotted 4 - 6 hours 
D. Additional meeting time beyond the agreement would be billed at the Office Fee 

Schedule, Principal $95 hourly 
 

III. Reimbursement & Schedule of Fees 
A. Reproductions to be billed separately from the agreement 

1. Plots for review, presentation and etc. beyond the Preliminary meeting 
2. Engineering 
3. Biologists and other consultants required in the design. 

 
B. Office Fee Schedule 

• Principal Design + Meetings ………   $95hourly 
• Principal Production………………….. $80 hourly 
• Staff / Design………………………….  $65 hourly 
 

IV. If the above scope of design services is acceptable as defined in items I, II, & III 
Please sign here or attach this document as an Exhibit to generate agreement the 
CAWD standard contract. 

  
The purpose of this agreement is to act as a point from which to bill against the for  
an estimate for Design services for the Carmel Area Waste Water District  as defined 
above. (This proposal is valid for 60 days hence)  

1. Mobilization & Landscape Renovation Perimeter Eucalyptus and  
Interior Facilities Campus landscape Plans along with ……………. $22,930 

2. Drawing rendering, Sketches & photo overlay ………….…………   $  2,450 
3. Meeting time estimate ………………….... …………………………… $  1,995 

 
   Total aggregate cost ………………………………………………………   $27,375 
                       (Twenty-Seven Thousand Three Hundred and seventy-Five Dollars) 
Signed by:           
                 
              ________________________________________________________ 
                  Barbara Buikema, General Manager CAWD                       date:  

79



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐39 

 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MINOR 

SERVICES CONTRACT WITH HALL LANDSCAPE DESIGN IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $27,375 FOR WWTP PERIMETER TREES AND INTERIOR LANDSCAPE PLANNING 

 
-oOo- 

 
  WHEREAS, Staff has received a scope of work and fee proposal agreeable to the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District General Manager for planning work regarding perimeter trees and 

interior landscaping; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it does hereby authorize the General Manager to enter into a minor 

services contract for WWTP perimeter trees and interior landscape planning in an amount of 

$27,375, with Hall Landscape Design. 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019, by the following vote: 

  AYES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  NOES:    BOARD MEMBERS: 

  ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

               _____________________________ 

                President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 

  Secretary of the Board 

80



STAFF REPORT 
 

To:                  Board of Directors 

 

From:  Ed Waggoner,  Operations 

Superintendent  

 

Date:  August 29, 2019 

Subject:   Award of contract for Purchase of Reverse Osmosis (RO) Elements and 

Technical Support Services. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the 

following expenditures from the CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project Budget for 2019‐

2020 to replace the Reverse Osmosis (RO) Elements and provide Technical Support 

Services to install the elements, not to exceed $191,005.00, and direct the General 

Manager to: 

 

1) Execute a contract for purchase Hydranautics, Nitto Group 

Company in the amount not to exceed $124,415.29; and 

2) Authorize the additional purchase of Technical support services as 

described in the Board report to complete change of the RO Elements in 

an amount not to exceed $12,565.00. 

3) Execute a contract for purchase Professional Water Technologies 

Group in an amount not to exceed $54,024.28. Technical support 

services including installation is include in the quote. 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Through recent discussion with staff and Trussell Technologies it has been 

recommended to start the process of ordering replacement elements as it can take up to 

24 weeks to acquire said membranes. The Reverse Osmosis Elements that were 

replaced originally in the fall of 2013 and have had 6 years of operation. 

 

Staff is requesting the replacement project be approved at this time even though the 

current elements are working within operating parameters. Historically, the first set of 

elements in all three Reverse Osmosis trains failed quickly once fouling of the elements 

could not be reversed with CIP (clean‐in‐place) protocol. Reverse Osmosis Elements can 

be stored 2+ years if stored in a building which makes ordering now prudent. 

81



The proposed project is as follows: 

 

• Staff has chosen to utilize Hydranautics  Nitto Group Company  to supply two 

RO Trains with their ESPA2‐LD RO element (Quantity of 238) and ESPA2‐LD 

MAX RO element (Quantity of 21) for the project. RO Train A will have a 

mixture of the ESPA2‐LD and ESPA2‐LD MAX as suggested by staff and Trussell 

Technologies to improve the recovery in stages 3 and 4 of the RO system. RO 

Train B will consist of ESPA2‐LD RO elements only. 

 

• Staff choose Toray TMG20D‐400 membranes elements (Quantity 122) for RO 

Train C to test a different membrane against the Hydranautics Nitto Group 

ESPA2‐LD RO elements. In addition, the Toray Elements from PWT 

(Professional Water Technologies) have a delivery time of just two weeks 

compared to the ESPA2‐LD RO elements sixteen to twenty‐three weeks. 

 

• Staff did obtain replace element quotes from Hydranautics Nitto Group 

Company. And a quote from Consolidated Water Solutions which supplies the 

following elements; Hydranautics ESPA2‐LD, Filmtec BW30XFRLE‐400/34, LG 

Membrane BW 400 ES, and Toray TMG20D‐400. Consolidated Water Solutions 

does not provide any Technical Support Services. 

 

• Hydranautics Nitto Group Company will provide all supervision, labor, 

equipment and materials required to: remove existing ESPA2‐LD RO elements 

(CAWD will be responsible for element disposal), Clean interior of existing 

pressure vessels, Install new ESPA2‐LD or ESPA2‐LD Max RO elements, 

Document RO element loading sequence by RO Trains A & B, stage, vessel and 

serial number, and supervise RO Train startup operation. 

 

• Professional Water Technologies and Toray will provide all supervision, labor, 

equipment and materials required to: remove existing ESPA2‐LD RO elements 

from RO Train C (CAWD will be responsible for element disposal), Clean 

interior of existing pressure vessels, Install new Toray TMG20D‐400 RO 

elements, Document RO element loading sequence by RO Train C, stage , vessel 

and serial number, and supervise RO Train startup operation. 

 

• Hydranautics Nitto Group Company & Professional Water Technologies 

will perform all work to maintain 2 RO Trains always operating during the 

replacement time period. 

82



 

FUNDING 

 

The CAWD/PBCSD Reclamation Project 2019‐2020 Budget includes line items: 

 

#67500   RO Membrane Elements        $180,000 

#66750   Spare Parts            $  15,000 

 

            Total      $195,000 

 

The project total is estimate not to exceed $191,005. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments: 

IRWUG funding ʺemailʺ 

Hydranautics Quotation 082019‐005sj 

Professional Water Technologies, Toray Proposal 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐40 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES FROM THE CAWD/PBCSD 

BUDGET FOR 2019/20 TO REPLACE THE REVERSE OSMOSIS (RO) ELEMENTS AND 

PROVIDE TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES TO INSTALL THE ELEMENTS NOT TO 

EXCEED $191,005 

 

‐oOo‐ 

 

WHEREAS, the Reverse Osmosis Elements are predicted to be near the end of 

their useful life and staff recommends ordering now and storing because it can take up 

to 24 weeks to acquire said membranes and we cannot risk a break in operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is convinced by the staff report presented on this date at 

the regular CAWD board meeting that the District should replace the RO elements and 

obtain technical support in an amount not to exceed $191,005; and 

WHEREAS, staff has demonstrated approval by the Reclamation participants 

outside of their regularly scheduled meeting and items approved by the Reclamation 

Project are brought to the CAWD or PBCSD Board, as appropriate, for approval and 

any applicable resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District that it does hereby approve the following expenditures from 

the 2019/20 Reclamation Budget and directs the General Manager to: 

1. Execute a contract for purchase of RO elements from Hydranautics Nitto Group 

Company in the amount of $124,415.29; and 

2. Authorize the additional purchase of technical support services from 

Hydranautics Nitto Group Company as described in the Board report to 

complete change of the RO elements in an amount not to exceed $12,565.00; and 

97



3. Execute a contract for purchase of RO elements from Professional Water 

Technologies Group in an amount not to exceed $54,024.28.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:   BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:     BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

          ________________________________________________ 

          President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Secretary of the Board 

98



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 
From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:              August 29, 2019 
 
Subject:          Upper  Rancho Cañada Sewer Relocation   

      Project #19‐13 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve two resolutions as follows: 

 Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with Rincon Consultants 

for environmental permitting services for $44,966; and 

 Authorize the General Manager to enter into a contract with MNS Engineering, 

Inc. to provide engineering design services for $103,918. 
 
DISCUSSION 

 

The upper Rancho Cañada sewer is located within the Palo Corona Regional Park and 

has been included in the CAWD Collections Department five year Capital Improvement 

Plan for sewer line replacement.  This sewer line portion that is proposed to be replaced 

includes pipe that varies in size from 8 to 12 inches and was constructed in the late 

1960’s to early 1970’s.  In addition, a subdivision is proposed downstream of the project 

site that will require relocating the sewer trunk line through the subdivision and the 

Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District (MPRPD) has plans to develop the existing 

golf course into a park.   

 

Staff have met with the MPRPD General Manager, Rafael Payan,  in order to discuss the 

timing for their proposed park development plan, how we can relocate our sewer line to 

minimize impacts on the park project, and other park related issues that we need to 

understand.  Mr. Payan referred us to their environmental consultant, Rincon 

Consultants, to get an idea of what environmental issues we may encounter for our 

project.   

 

FUNDING 

 

The  two proposals sum up to $148,884 and will be funded by the Collections Capital 

Improvement budget.  The 2019/2020 budget for this project is $200,000. 

99



 

ATTACHMENTS 

 

MNS – Contract & Proposal 

Rincon – Initial Study & Proposal 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



RESOLUTION 2019‐41 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT  

WITH MNS ENGINEERS TO PROVIDE DESIGN SERVICES  

FOR THE UPPER RANCHO CAÑADA SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

    WHEREAS,  the District approved the 2019/2020 budget that included funding 

for the Upper Rancho Cañada Sewer Replacement Project consulting work; 

    WHEREAS, the District received a proposal from MNS Engineers for professional 

engineering services to prepare the Final Design documents for the Rancho Canada Sewer 

Replacement Project; 

    WHEREAS, in order to proceed with design of the project, the District must 

execute a contract with MNS Engineers to prepare plans and specifications for the project as 

summarized in their proposal dated July 24, 2019 in the amount of $103,918. 

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract with MNS 

Engineers to prepare plans and specifications for replacement and relocation of a sewer 

pipeline in Palo Corona Regional Park. 

    PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019. 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

______________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

119



 

 

Please refer to staff report by Rachel Lather on page 99 regarding Resolution 2019-41 & 
Resolution 2019-42 

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



RESOLUTION 2019‐42 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT  

WITH RINCON CONSULTANTS TO PREPARE ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTS  

FOR THE UPPER RANCHO CAÑADA SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

    WHEREAS,  the District approved the 2019/2020 budget that included funding 

for the Upper Rancho Cañada Sewer Replacement Project consulting work; 

    WHEREAS, the District received a proposal from the environmental consultant, 

Rincon Consultants,  who was selected for the work at the same location by Monterey 

Peninsula Regional Park District due to their knowledge and experience in the project area; 

    WHEREAS, in order to proceed with design of the project, the District must 

execute a contract with Rincon Consultants for $44,966 to prepare an Initial Study and 

Mitigated Negative Declaration as summarized in their proposal dated June 10, 2019. 

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract with 

Rincon Consultants to prepare environmental documents for replacement and relocation of a 

sewer pipeline in Palo Corona Regional Park. 

    PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019. 

 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

______________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

137



138



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-43 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT 
 OF THE DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT RESERVE FUND BALANCE 

 BY TRANSFERRING $1,596,031 TO THE CAPITAL FUND 
 AND $3,408,502 FROM THE GENERAL O&M FUND 

 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DISTRICT’S RESERVE POLICY 
 

-oOo- 
 

 WHEREAS, on March 25, 2010 the Board approved a Reserve Policy that provides for 

the annual adjustment of the District’s Capital Improvement Reserve Fund balance to provide 

funding to: (a) establish a balance in the Capital Fund sufficient to fund the current year’s capital 

budget; and (b) establish a balance in the General Operations & Maintenance (O&M) Fund 

sufficient to fund 100% of the current year’s total operating budget; and 

 WHEREAS, to fully fund the current year Capital Fund and the General O&M Fund, 

staff has recommended that the Board authorize the adjustment of the District’s Capital 

Improvement Reserve Fund balance by approving an internal budget transfer in the amount of 

$1,596,031 to the Capital Fund and in the amount of $3,408,502 from the General O&M Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area 

Wastewater District that it hereby authorizes the adjustment of the District Capital Improvement 

Reserve Fund balance and approves the transfer of $1,596,031 from the Capital Improvement 

Reserve Fund to the Capital Fund and the transfer of $3,408,502 to the Capital Improvement 

Reserve from the General O&M Fund. 

 

 

 

 

139



 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel Area Wastewater 

District at a regular meeting duly held on August 29, 2019, by the following vote: 

 AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 
 ABSENT: BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
      ________________________________________ 
       President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary of the Board 
 

140



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Chris Foley, Maintenance Superintendent 

 

Date:    August 29, 2019 

 

Subject:  Contract Amendment with ERS Industrial Services, Inc. (ERS) for Project 

18‐09 Secondary Clarifier No. 1 Rehabilitation.  

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
It  is  recommended  that  the  Board  of Directors  ratify  the  amended  contract  amount 

authorized by the General Manager with ERS Industrial Services, Inc. in an amount not to 

exceed $19,945 for the additional items completed during the secondary clarifier coating.  

 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The district awarded a contract with ERS on May 30th, 2019 for $127,190. During 

construction additional work outside of the scope resulted in additional costs.  

 

The additional tasks included are as follows: 

 

 The pipe plug installed by CAWD preventing water from entering the clarifier 

began leaking which created a pool of water in the clarifier. Construction work 

had to be stopped and the water was pumped out and clarifier dried out by the 

contractor. Cost was $2,925. 

 The weir plates for the trough in the clarifier required removal and this was not 

included in the original scope of work. It was deemed more efficient to have the 

contractor remove the plates since they were already setup for confined space 

work in the clarifier. Cost was $2,730. 

 After the blasting was completed some holes were exposed in the metal column. 

The holes had to be patched and welded before the coating was applied. Cost 

was $4,290. 

 The bottom concrete of the clarifier is leaking water at two construction joints. 

The scope of work includes injecting these cracks to seal them to prevent water 

intrusion. The cost estimate is $10,000.  

141



 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

An amount not to exceed cost of $19,945 from the 2019‐20 Plant Maintenance Budget.   

 

Total Project Costs as follows: 

Description  Amount

Purchase & installation of the bridge and 

clarifier drive components 

$126,758 

Electrical work  $  15,000 

Blasting & Protective Coating Work  $127,190 

ERS Contract Amendment #2  $  19,945 

Total Costs $288,893

 

Resolution #2018‐28 (07‐26‐18)  $250,000 

Resolution #2019‐20 (05‐30‐19)  $  18,948 

Total Approved to date $268,948 

 

2019‐20 Maintenance Budget additional 

costs outside original scope 

 

$  19,945 

 

 

 

 

142



RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐44 

 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE AMENDED CONTRACT AMOUNT AND 

APPROVING THE ACTIONS OF THE GENRAL MANAGER IN APPROVING 

SAID AMENDMENT WITH ERS INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, INC. IN AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $19,945 FOR ADDITIONAL ITEMS COMPLETED DURING 

THE SECONDARY CLARIFIER COATING PROJECT 

‐oOo‐ 

WHEREAS, during the course of the Clarifier No. 1 Rehabilitation Project the 

District incurred additional costs due to construction items added that were outside the 

original project scope and are detailed in staff report dated August 20, 2019 and 

presented to the Board as part of this resolution; and  

WHEREAS, the Board is convinced that this work was necessary and reasonable 

and ratifies the actions of the General Manager in approving the additional costs in an 

amount not to exceed $19,945 to be allocated from the 2019‐20 Plant Maintenance 

Budget; and 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Carmel 

Area Wastewater District, that it ratifies the amended contract amount and approves 

the actions of the General Manager in approving said amendment with ERS Industrial 

Services, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $19,945 for additional items completed during 

the Secondary Clarifier Coating Project. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

AYES: BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

143



              _____________________________ 

              President of the Board 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

 

144



STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:                  Board of Directors 
 
From:             Rachél Lather, Principal Engineer 
 
Date:              August 29, 2019 
 
Subject:          Hatton  Canyon  Access  Road       

      
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Resolution 2019‐45 to authorize 

the General Manager to bid and award the construction contract for the Hatton 

Canyon Access Road Project and return to your Board on October 28, 2019 with results 

of the bidding. 
 
DISCUSSION 

 

The California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) awarded the District a grant for 

$297,918.90 to complete repairs to the gravel access road along Hatton Creek.  District 

staff planned to do this work after the pipeline replacement project was completed this 

fall.  In anticipation of this, staff requested a time extension for the roadway grant from 

Cal OES.   

 

Cal OES has approved the District’s request for a time extension for completion of the 

grant funded road project to July 31, 2020.  Award of grant funding for the pipeline 

project has been delayed. Staff anticipates that the pipeline replacement project will be 

constructed between June and August of 2020.  In order to eliminate liability issues 

associated with two contractors working in the same area at the same time, it is 

recommended that we complete the road work this fall.   

 

The property is owned by State Parks and the District has been working with them to 

provide a suitable design and obtain environmental permits.  In addition, staff have met 

multiple times with State Parks staff to delineate the areas that need maintenance/repairs 

and to keep the work within their road and out of the flood plain, eliminating the need 

for other permits.  They will be preparing the Notice of Determination in the next week 

and will post it with the State Clearinghouse for 30 days. Meanwhile, the District needs 

to expedite bidding and awarding the contract  to complete construction of the project 

this fall.   In order to do that, your Board will need to approve the attached resolution 

145



authorizing the General Manager to invite bids for the project and award the contract for 

the project. 

 

FUNDING 

The $297,918.90 grant for the project will pay for the engineering costs and the 

construction of the project.  This project was anticipated to be completed in the 2020/21 

fiscal year and therefore was not in the 2019/20 budget.   

 

146



RESOLUTION 2019‐45 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO PROCEED WITH BIDDING AND 
CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

 THE HATTON CANYON ACCESS ROAD PROJECT 

‐oOo‐ 

    WHEREAS,  the District has been awarded a grant from  California Office of 

Emergency Services (CalOES) for repair and maintenance of the Hatton Canyon Access Road in 

the amount of $297,918.80 and Cal OES has approved a request by the District to extend the 

time for completion of the project to July 31, 2020;  

    WHEREAS, the District needs to prepare the bid documents, receive bids, award 

a construction contract and complete construction for the Hatton Canyon Road Project prior to 

the 2019/2020 rainy season; 

    WHEREAS, in order to proceed within the timelines required for construction of 

the project, the Board of Directors  need to approve an expedited bidding process that 

authorizes the General Manager to advertise an invitation for bids and award the bid to the 

lowest qualified responsible bidder; 

    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of Carmel Area 

Wastewater District, hereby authorizes the General Manager to invite bids, open the bids and 

award a contract to the lowest qualified responsible bidder. 

    PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

Carmel Area Wastewater District duly held on August 29, 2019. 

AYES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

NOES:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

ABSENT:  BOARD MEMBERS: 

______________________________________________ 

            President of the Board 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 

Secretary to the Board 

147



148



 
STAFF REPORT 
 

 

To:    Board of Directors 

 

From:    Barbara Buikema, General Manager 

 

Date:    August 29, 2019 

 

Subject:  Pebble Beach Community Services District – Regular Board Meeting July 

26, 2019 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Agenda items from the July 26, 2019 meeting that are of specific interest to this District: 

 

 The District was awarded the Government Finance Association’s Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for their 2018 fiscal year end 

comprehensive annual financial report. 

 

 Total cash balance at the end of June 2019 was $19.7M; of that amount, $12.5M 

was designated for Capital Acquisition and Outlay Reserves.  Property taxes 

comprise roughly 85% of District revenues with user fees making up 12%. 

 

 The June 2019 Cash Basis Budget reflect Revenues at 81.1% of budget and 

Expenditures at 55.1% (O&M 70.9% and Capital 24.7%) 

 

 Forest Lake Reservoir held 88 MG (million gallons) of recycled water or 77% of 

permitted capacity.  Current storage volume is 57% above the historic average of 

56 MG. 

 

 Total irrigation water demand for the 2019 calendar year through June was 327 

AF (acre feet).  Total demand for the calendar year is 28% below the 5‐year 

average of 456AF and 27% below the 24‐year average annual usage of 449 AF.  

The month of June reflected a net storage decrease of approximately 15 MG at 

Forest Lake Reservoir, compared with a net decrease of 24 MG for June of last 

year. 

 

149



 Average daily wastewater flow of 427,000 GPD was measured in June at the 

PBCSD‐Carmel gate.  This represents 34% of the total flow at the CAWD 

treatment facility.  The measured PBCSD flow was 22% above the five‐year 

average of 351,000 GPD for the month of June; the CAWD total flow was 4% 

above the five‐year average of 1,208,000 GPD for May.   

 

 The Board authorized an increase to the Reclamation Budget from $100K to $25K 

for material and equipment procurement; additional well drilling services; and 

underground utility construction services for the development of well water 

production. 

 

 The Board approved an agreement with E2 Consulting Engineers, Inc. to provide 

engineering services for the Reclamation Storage Tank Rehabilitation Project for 

an amount not to exceed $60K.  In June 2019 the Board approved an agreement 

with Tank Industry Consultants to provide engineering services for the same 

project for an amount not to exceed $150K. 

 

 Currently two facilities, the 4th Fairway Diversion and MPCC No. 9 Well are 

online.   Total production for the 2019 calendar year‐to‐date is approximately 3.4 

million gallons. 

 

 Average daily wastewater flows measured in million gallons per day (MG) 

show: 

 

MONTH  TOTAL  CAWD FLOW PBCSD FLOW  PBCSD

July ‐ 18  36.645  25.589  11.056  30.171% 

Aug – 18  36.346  25.482  10.864  29.890% 

Sept ‐ 18  33.219  23.073  10.146  30.543% 

Oct ‐ 18  32.829  22.915  9.914  30.199% 

Nov‐18  33.762  23.837  9.925  29.397% 

Dec‐18  35.452  24.846  10.606  29.917% 

Jan ‐ 19  39.778  27.204  12.574  31.610% 

Feb ‐ 19  65.276  40.133  25.143  38.518% 

Mar ‐ 19  57.969  34.308 23.661 40.817%

Apr ‐ 19  39.235  25.143  14.092  35.917% 

May ‐ 19  39.519  25.428  14.091  35.656% 

June ‐ 19  37.658  24.856  12.802  33.995% 

Total  487.688  322.814  164.874  33.807% 

 

150



 
 

CARMEL AREA WASTEWATER DISTRICT 

SUMMARY OF RETIREMENT PENSION PLAN TRUSTEES  

MEETING HELD ‐ July 24, 2019 

 

A meeting of the Retirement Pension Plan Trustees was held on Wednesday, July 

24, 2019 at 9:00 a.m.     

 

Those Present Included:  Michael Rachel, Director, Trustee 

        Rob Wellington, Legal Counsel, Trustee 

        Barbara Buikema, General Manager, Trustee 

        William J. Hastie, Jr., Principal, Hastie Financial 

Group (HFG) 

        Haley Hitchman, Partner, Financial Advisor (HFG) 

       

                       

I. Portfolio Performance Review 2nd Quarter 2019 
 

The portfolio remains highly diversified in the first quarter.    CAWD Portfolio 

value as of 06‐30‐19 was $5,407,494.   For the second quarter the portfolio 

experienced 80% of the S&P return.  For the first six months of the year it was 

69% of the S&P.    Total Gains for the first six months of 2019 were $569,962.   

 

The Columbia Dividend Income Fund was added in March 2019 as large cap 

value with annualized return of 4.09%.  Fidelity Advisor was added to portfolio 

to pick up on technology.  Federated Kaufmann has an IPO focus.  BlackRock 

Real Estate Securities is intended to provide negative correlation in a market 

downturn.  Trade negotiations between the U.S. and China will ensure continued 

volatility in the market.  

 

A brief discussion ensued of what an inverted yield curve may portend for the 

future.  An inverted yield curve is an interest rate environment in which long‐

term debt instruments have a lower yield than short‐term debt instruments of the 

same credit quality.  The theory being that long‐term bonds reveal investors’ 

expectations about future grown and lower rates indicate a greater degree of 

pessimism.  Seven out of seven of the last recessions have been preceded by 

either a flat or inverted yield curve.  Commonwealth Financial Network (our 

broker) predicts there will not be a recession in 2019; and may be 12‐18 months 

before the U.S. tips into a recession.  Projected Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is 

projected to remain positive for the remainder of 2019 and fall between 2.8%‐

3.0%.  The two issues that remain unanswered are (1) Federal Reserve plan and 

(2) China. 

 

151



 

The portfolio composition remains at a 60% stocks 40% bonds.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Portfolio Risk Measures (3‐year measure): 

 

  Three 

Year  S&P 

500 

Five 

Year  S&P 500 

Ten 

Year 

 

S&P 500 

Beta (a)  0.61    0.63    0.65   

Standard 

Deviation (b) 

7.63  12.19  7.84  12.03  8.56  12.73 

Mean  11.42  14.19  8.33  10.71  11.89  14.70 

Alpha  2.04    1.10    1.95   

(a) Strategy is to maintain Beta in the range of 0.60 ‐ 0.67 

(b) Strategy is to remain at roughly 2/3 of S & P 500 

 

II. 3rd Quarter 2019 Action Plan 
 

For the 3rd Quarter the strategy is to remain broadly diversified and rebalance as 

necessary.    HFG will “keep an eye” on the Fidelity Advisor Fund which 

represents 8% of the portfolio and is our technology pickup.    There are no other 

changes recommended at this time. 

 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 

11:00 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara Buikema  

General Manager 

152



2nd Quarter Performance Review
3rd Quarter Action Plan
July 24, 2019

Carmel Area Wastewater District
Defined Benefit Plan

153



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

154



YTD as of 6/30/19 OVERVIEW

155



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

156



2nd Quarter OVERVIEW

157



MARKET REVIEW – 6/30/2019

3 Month YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year

S&P 500 TR 4.30 18.54 10.42 14.19 10.71

Russell 1000 4.25 18.84 10.02 14.15 10.45

Russell Mid Cap 4.13 21.35 7.83 12.16 8.63

Russell 2000 2.10 16.98 -3.31 12.30 7.06

MSCI EAFE 3.68 14.03 1.08 9.11 2.25

MSCI Emerging Markets 0.61 10.58 1.21 10.66 2.49

Barclays Capital US 
Aggregate 3.08 6.11 7.87 2.31 2.95

158



3RD QUARTER 2019 FUND CHANGES

No changes at this time

159



3RD QUARTER 2019 OVERALL PORTFOLIO

8%

14%

5%

10%

5%

7%7%
4%

16%

10%

9%
5%

Fidelity Advisor Growth Opportunity - 8%

iShares Core S&P 500 - 14%

Columbia Contrarian Core - 5%

Columbia Dividend Income - 10%

Vanguard Extended Market Index - 5%

Federated Kaufmann Small Cap - 7%

Oppenheimer Global Opportunities - 7%

BlackRock Real Estate Securities - 4%

PIMCO Income - 16%

Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index - 10%

PGIM High Yield - 9%

Cash - 5%

160



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

BETA:
A measure of volatility (risk) relative to the Standard & Poor's 500 Index.  Beta of 1.0 indicates 
risk equal to that of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and  
10 years.  Beta of less than 1.0 indicates risk less than that of the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 0.61 0.63 0.65

161



FUND RISK & COST STATISTICS

Mutual Fund/ETF 3 Year Beta Net Expense 
Ratio

Fidelity Advisor Growth Opportunity 1.03 0.66
iShares Core S&P 500 1.00 0.04
Columbia Contrarian Core 1.03 0.77
Columbia Dividend Income 0.86 0.71
Vanguard Extended Market Index 1.15 0.07
Federated Kaufmann Small Cap 1.09 0.91
Oppenheimer Global Opportunities 1.44 0.85
BlackRock Real Estate Securities 0.62 1.05
PIMCO Income 0.33 0.84
Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index 1.22 0.07
PGIM High Yield 0.29 0.55

162



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

STANDARD DEVIATION:

Another measure of volatility (risk).  A higher Standard Deviation indicates a higher degree of volatility 
(risk) over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD Portfolio with 
the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year_
CAWD Portfolio 7.63 7.84 8.56 

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 12.19 12.03 12.73

163



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

MEAN:

Mean return over a given period of time, usually 3, 5 and 10 years.  We will compare the CAWD 
Portfolio with the S&P 500 Index.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 11.42 8.33 11.89

Standard & Poor's 500 Index 14.19 10.71 14.70

164



RISK & RISK ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE

ALPHA:

A measure of risk-adjusted returns.  An Alpha of 0 indicates a return proportionate to the degree of 
risk taken.  A positive Alpha indicates a return generated in excess of the degree of risk taken.

3 Year 5 Year 10 Year
CAWD Portfolio 2.04 1.10 1.95

165



166



167



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 
From:  Barbara Buikema, General Manager 
 
Date:  August 29, 2019 
 
Subject: Trestle Bridge & Coastal Connectivity 
 
The District is once again attempting to resurrect interest in creating a “hub” of connectivity 
between the trails that run through Carmel and the rest of the Coastline going into Big Sur.   
 
Project Goals 

 To create a safe pedestrian/bike trail bridge crossing the Carmel River 
 To rehabilitate the CAWD bridge with grant funding opportunities – CAWD needs the 

bridge for emergency access 
 Educate the public on what we do and how we can co-exist with State Parks 

 
Potential Partners with Property Interests 

 Carmel Area Wastewater District – easement across Carmel River, Rio Park, Larsen 
Field 

 City of Carmel-by-the-Sea – Rio Park  
 Catholic Diocese of Monterey – 4 acres east of the plant 
 Monterey Peninsula Regional Park District – interested in coastal trail connectivity 
 California Department of Parks and Recreation – Nature Preserve next to plant 

 
Potential Benefits/Interest for Other Community Entities 

 TAMC – 2% Bike/Trail funding 
 Big Sur Land Trust – Carmel River Free and Carmel River Parkway trail connections 
 Carmel Unified School District and Diocese – safe trail around Carmel Mission for 

school children 
 State Coastal Conservancy – enhancement of Coastal Trail System 

 
Project History & Update: 

 Pre 2010 the District participated in a TAMC planning session and offered up its bridge 
as a way to link the City of Carmel with the Big Sur area. 
 

 In 2010 the District reached out to Regional Parks District when it appeared the Project 
might be resurfacing.  Expressed our interest and again offered our bridge.  The City of 
Carmel, Big Sur Land Trust, and Transportation Agency of Monterey County were all 
cc’d on our letter. 
 

 In March 2012 the District wrote a letter of support for a Cal-Trans planning grant to 

168



“identify missing links in pedestrian, bicycle, and transit routes with the City and to 
nearby destinations.” 
 

 In 2015 when the City of Carmel was investigating a bike trail from Larsen Field to 
Lasuen Road the District agreed to work with the City as regards use of our property. 
 

 March 2019 attended California Coastal Trail (CCT) Meeting for Workgroup #1 or the 
first segment of proposed trail in Big Sur.  Once again, our bridge was offered as a 
possible means of connecting the City with Big Sur.  This group did not have any real 
knowledge of our bridge so two members came to visit and view.  They were very 
impressed – it is after all, quite beautiful.  However, their intent is to stay on the east side 
of Hwy 1 and they recommended we contact Mary Adams.  They would be interested in 
our section connecting with them on the east side of Hwy 1. 
 

 March 2019 the CCT Big Sur Workgroup #1 leader, Honey Williams, relayed that she 
spoke with the California Coastal Conservancy about our bridge.  Trish Chapman from 
the Conservancy indicated that she was aware of the bridge and implied that it was the 
sort of project the Conservancy might be interested in funding. 
 

 May 22, 2019 Met with at City of Carmel with officials from the City and the Diocese.  
Greg D’Ambrosio “volunteered” to be project leader. 
 

 June 7, 2019 met with Diocese (Father Paul and Justin Burke) to identify 
wants/needs/goals.  Take away – more parking, better safety/security, and better locations 
around the Mission. 
 

 June 23rd plant tour with Joyce Stevens to build support for the project. 
 

 June 28, 2019 Tour with City of Carmel – included Mayor Potter, City Administrator 
Chip Rerig, Doug Schmitz, Sam Farr, and staff from both CAWD and the City. 
 

 July 16, 2019 met with Rafael Payan, Regional Parks District – included Greg 
D’Ambrosio, Joyce Stevens, and B. Buikema.  Initial debut of our drone footage of the 
area. 
 

 August 9, 2019 during a field visit with PBCSD staff explained the potential project, its 
benefits, and how PBCSD could benefit from project. 
 

 August 23, 2019 scheduled meeting with City of Carmel to determine their 
wants/needs/goals. 

169



7L*(2

&$:' � &DUPHO 5LYHU 3HGHVWULDQ &URVVLQJ

. Ϭ ϮϱϬ ϱϬϬϭϮϱ
DĞƚĞƌƐ

�ĂƌŵĞů �ƌĞĂ tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ ͮ ϯϵϰϱ ZŝŽ ZĚ͘ �ĂƌŵĞů͕ �� ϵϯϵϮϮ ͮ ǁǁǁ͘ĐĂǁĚ͘ŽƌŐ

WŽƚĞŶƚŝĂů dƌĂŝů

�ǆŝƐƚŝŶŐ dƌĂŝů

�ƐƐĞƐƐĞĞ

�ĂƌŵĞů �ƌĞĂ tĂƐƚĞǁĂƚĞƌ �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ

�ŝƚǇ ŽĨ �ĂƌŵĞůͲďǇͲƚŚĞͲ^ĞĂ

�ŝŽĐĞƐĞ ŽĨ DŽŶƚĞƌĞǇ �ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ Θ tĞůĨĂƌĞ

,ŽŵĞƐƚĞĂĚ /ŶŶ͕ >>�͘

ZŽŵĂŶ �ĂƚŚŽůŝĐ �ŝƐŚŽƉ ŽĨ DŽŶƚĞƌĞǇ

^ƚĂƚĞ ŽĨ �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ

^ƚĂƚĞ ŽĨ �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ

�ŝƚǇ ŽĨ
�ĂƌŵĞůͲďǇͲƚŚĞͲ^ĞĂ

��t�

,ŽŵĞƐƚĞĂĚ /ŶŶ͕ >>�͘

��t�

ZŽŵĂŶ �ĂƚŚŽůŝĐ
�ŝƐŚŽƉ ŽĨ DŽŶƚĞƌĞǇ

��t�

�ŝŽĐĞƐĞ ŽĨ DŽŶƚĞƌĞǇ
�ĚƵĐĂƚŝŽŶ ĂŶĚ tĞůĨĂƌĞ

��t�

$SSUR[LPDWH /RFDWLRQ RI %ULGJH

170



171


	01. Board Packet Cover
	03.A 07-25-19 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	CONSENT CALENDAR: APPROVAL OF MINUTES, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MONTHLY REPORTS
	RESOLUTIONS

	03.B 07-30-19 Special Board Meeting Minutes-V1
	04. A 2019-07-31 H&W July Independent Accounts Report
	04. B 2019-06.30 Revised H&W June Independent Accountants Report
	05.A CAWD Cash Receipts & Disbursements-modified-July 2019
	06. CAWD Disbursements - July 2019
	07. Reclamation Disbursements - July 2019
	08. Financial Statement - July 2019
	09.A Collections July 19 Board Staff Report
	09.B Collections July 2019 Cleaning Map May - June - July-modified
	10. Safety and Regulatory Staff Report July 2019
	11. Treatment Facility Ops Report - July, June, May
	12.A Lab & Environmental Compliance - Staff Report July 2019
	12.B Protein Matrix - Eliminator
	13. Capital Projects Implementation Plan 8-8-19
	14. Operations Staff Report - July 2019
	15. Maintenance - Staff Report July 2019
	16. Principal Engineering Staff Report - July 2019
	17.A #18-28 Landscape Contract Hall Landscape Design for WWTP $27,375
	17.C RES 2019-39 Contract with Hall Landscape Design for WWTP Tree Planning
	18.A Reverse Osmosis Membranes - Staff Report
	18.B Recl funding approval email
	18.C Hydranautics Nitto Group - Proposal
	18.D Professional Water Technologies - Proposal
	18.E RES 2019-40 Expenditure for Reverse Osmosis Elements - corrected
	19.A Rancho Canada Sewer Replacement - Staff Report $103,918 & $44,966
	19.B Unexecuted contract w MNS and Rincon
	19.E RES 2019-41 Auth contract with MNS - Rancho Canada
	20.A Please refer to staff report by Rachel Lather on page
	20.B Unexecuted contract w Rincon
	20.C RES 2019-42 Auth contract with Rincon - Rancho Canada
	21.A Reserve Fund Balance Adj - Staff Report
	21.B RES 2019-43 Reserve Fund Adjustment
	22.A Amend contract w ERS - Secondary Clarifier Coating- Staff Report $19,945
	22.B RES 2019-44 Amendment to ERS Contract
	23.A Hatton Road Maintenance Staff Report-Final-Final (002)
	23.B Hatton Canyon Access Road Resolution-Final-Final
	24. Fall 2019 Newletter Topics
	25. PBCSD  07-26-19
	26.A Pension Committee 07-24-19
	26.B 2nd Qtr Pension Plan Review
	Carmel Area Wastewater District
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13

	27. Summary of Mty County Treasurer Report 06-30-19
	29.C1 Treatment Plant Bridge -Project Update
	29.C2 Ped Bridge Crossing - GIS map
	29.C3 Rio Park 1991 Plan - Hall + Rock



